
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

SSeepptteemmbbeerr  66,,  22002222  
  



 
 
September 1, 2022  6:33:49 PM 

 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 
COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM & LIVESTREAM ON FACEBOOK 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Johnson 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 2 6:15 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes for August 1, 15 & 24, 2022 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Revised Salary Schedule/Pay Table 
d) SAA Delegates for October Meeting 
e) RESO2022-031 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 272 N St., Plymouth 
f) RESO2022-034 Remembering 911 
g) RESO2022-035 Authorizing Execution of Deed Regarding the Sale of Real Property 

Pursuant to NCGS §158.7.1 
h) RESO2022-036 Proclamation Emergency Preparedness Month  
i) RESO2022-037 Proclamation Constitution Week 

 
Item 3    6:20 PM Department Information Update:  Sheriff’s Office, Sheriff Barnes, Deputy Chief Norman 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM Late Application for Elderly Property Tax Relief, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM RESO2022-033 Pea Ridge Transmission Expansion & Presentation, Mr. Richard 

Livingston, Senior Project Director 
 
Item 6 7:05 PM State of Emergency Discussion, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA  
  
Item 7 7:15 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
  
Item 8 7:25 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
    ABC Board Budget Amendment  
    Purchasing Policy 

NCACC Legislative Goals  
METCON School Construction Contract 

 
Item 9 7:55 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-

client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
   

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   1  
 
       DATE:   September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  2 
 
       DATE:  September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 
a) Approval of Minutes for August 1, 15 & 24, 2022 Regular & Special Called 

Meetings – See attached (at the end of the package). 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts—See attached. 
 

c) Revised Salary Schedule/Pay Table—See attached.   
They were revised to correct an Excel formula error in the Social Services 
Director’s grade and to remove a redundant and inaccurate reference to the 
Computer System Administrator I position.  Otherwise there have been no 
changes. 

 
d) SAA Delegates for October Meeting—See attached. This year Washington 

County will name a President & Secretary for the SAA. 
 
e) RESO2022-031 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 272 N St., Plymouth—See 

attached. 
 
f) RESO2022-034 Remembering 911—See attached. 
 
g) RESO2022-035 Authorizing Execution of Deed Regarding the Sale of Real 

Property Pursuant to NCGS §158.7.1—See attached. 
 
h) RESO2022-036 Proclamation Emergency Preparedness Month—See attached. 

 
  

i) RESO2022-037 Proclamation Constitution Week—See attached. 
 

 











Grade Position Title #POS Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Ind 112 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Veteran's Service Officer PT
Maintenance Worker I 3
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
EMT Basic 10
Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 0
Utility Customer Service Rep 2
Accounting Technician 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
WCSO Animal Control Officer 1
Landfill Operator 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 3
Administrative Asst 3
WCSO Administrative Deputy 1
Detention Officer 8
EMT Intermediate 3
Maintenance Worker II 1
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert 7
Detention Corporal 3
Water Treatment Plant Operator 1
Code Enforement Officer 1

16 Chief Landfill Operator 1 $30,253 $31,020 $31,775 $32,582 $33,374 $34,219 $35,051 $35,947 $36,842 $37,777 $38,724 $39,658 $40,681 $41,655 $42,730 $43,779 $44,874
Airport Manager 1
Detention - Lieutenant 1
Recreation Director 1
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
WCSO Deputy I 7
EMT Paramedic 9
EMS Shift Supervisor 0
Senior Center Director 1
Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1
WCSO Deputy II 2
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Senior Project Manager 1
WCSO School Resource Officer 3
911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1
WCSO Corporal 2
Maintenance Supervisor 1
IT Systems Operator 1
WCSO Sergeant 2

23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $37,355 $38,263 $39,210 $40,247 $41,232 $42,230 $43,280 $44,368 $45,480 $46,632 $47,771 $48,974 $50,190 $51,444 $52,737 $54,042 $55,393
WCSO Investigator 3
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1

26 Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1 $40,400 $41,386 $42,397 $43,510 $44,572 $45,673 $46,825 $47,988 $49,204 $50,420 $51,687 $52,967 $54,285 $55,642 $57,036 $58,444 $59,906
WCSO Lieutenant 2
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1

31 Emergency Mgmt Coord 1 $45,443 $46,581 $47,733 $48,923 $50,152 $51,419 $52,686 $53,991 $55,322 $56,742 $58,137 $59,596 $61,093 $62,616 $64,177 $65,777 $67,421
WCSO Chief Deputy 1
EMS Deputy Director 1
Tax Administrator 1

37 EMS Director 1 $51,508 $52,813 $54,144 $55,500 $56,870 $58,303 $59,737 $61,221 $62,770 $64,318 $65,943 $67,569 $69,283 $70,985 $72,764 $74,593 $76,458
39 Utilities Director 1 $53,556 $54,861 $56,256 $57,664 $59,109 $60,568 $62,065 $63,627 $65,214 $66,864 $68,528 $70,256 $71,983 $73,787 $75,630 $77,511 $79,449
40 Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1 $54,579 $55,949 $57,317 $58,777 $60,223 $61,708 $63,243 $64,856 $66,468 $68,119 $69,821 $71,574 $73,352 $75,169 $77,332 $78,996 $80,971

Finance Officer 1
45 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $60,509 $62,044 $63,578 $65,178 $66,805 $68,470 $70,175 $71,959 $73,744 $75,579 $77,469 $79,409 $81,391 $83,437 $85,509 $87,674 $89,866

FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92, Sheriff & ROD Pay has been exempt from YORE based step progression; but for FY23 is expected to be adjusted in accordance with YORE/regrade of positions. 
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY22 Note:  Two additional Certified Deputy I Positions to Take Over Courthouse Security
FY23 Note: Actual compensation amounts for NCSU Coop Extension Staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression compared to regular county staff
Recent COLAs: 2% 2013; 2% 2015; 2% 2018; 2.5% 2023

$25,671 $30,509 $31,237 $32,044 $32,845

11 $28,487 $29,215 $29,907 $30,662

$35,862$28,026

FY23 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Combined County Non-DSS) - Revised/Effective: 8/16/2022

$61,413$49,204 $50,420 $51,687 $52,967 $54,298 $55,654 $57,036 $58,457 $59,916

$22,140 $22,689 $23,266 $23,854 $24,417 $25,070 $26,324 $26,976 $27,629 $28,333 $29,012 $29,779

$36,446 $37,357$33,029 $33,848 $34,719 $35,589

$33,311 $34,143 $34,988

$31,455 $32,223

8

12 $26,184 $26,874 $27,527 $28,231 $28,909

$27,117 $27,808$26,477$25,185 $25,825

$29,664 $30,355 $31,122 $31,903 $32,697 $33,503

$37,482 $38,391 $40,401

$34,334 $35,192 $36,088 $36,984 $37,931

$39,415$35,691 $36,574

$38,879

$40,835 $41,856$37,022 $37,943 $38,891 $39,863

13 $27,193 $27,885 $28,563

14 $28,243 $28,922 $29,677

$32,351 $33,144 $34,002 $34,821$29,305 $30,023 $30,777 $31,571

15 $29,254 $29,958 $30,713 $31,494 $32,262

$35,205 $36,114$30,368 $31,135 $31,916 $32,722 $33,542 $34,360

$33,081 $33,912 $34,757 $35,628 $36,497 $37,406

$43,062 $44,137 $46,369

$38,314 $39,287 $40,310 $41,296 $42,307

$45,238$41,001 $42,051

$43,365

$46,735 $47,903$42,320 $43,369 $44,495 $45,545

17 $31,251 $32,044 $32,851

18 $32,275 $33,106 $33,912

$37,150 $38,084 $39,031 $39,990$33,657 $34,502 $35,371 $36,254

19 $33,311 $34,130 $34,962 $35,845 $36,715

$40,310 $41,309$34,770 $35,640 $36,510 $37,431 $38,341 $39,287

$43,663 $44,725 $45,878 $47,016 $48,168 $49,372$37,623 $38,634 $39,569 $40,541 $41,540 $42,615

$50,894

21 $35,294 $36,190 $37,111

$40,759 $41,770 $42,819 $43,881 $44,982 $46,108

$51,124 $52,402$46,287 $47,029 $48,654 $49,870

20 $34,297 $35,154 $36,024 $36,920

$44,073 $45,199$38,033 $38,980 $39,940 $40,913 $41,975 $43,011

$49,653$37,892 $38,813 $39,787 $47,247 $48,450

$54,259 $55,616

22 $36,344 $37,278 $38,161 $39,108 $40,055

$67,261 $68,606

25 $39,402 $40,375 $41,360 $42,371 $43,472 $44,547 $45,609

$47,643 $48,821 $50,062 $51,304 $52,596 $53,911$41,104 $42,128 $43,165 $44,239 $45,379 $46,491

$56,972 $58,397

32 $46,440 $47,618 $48,796

$46,799 $47,938 $49,128 $50,369 $51,649 $52,928

27 $41,386 $42,397 $43,523 $44,572 $45,673 $46,837 $47,988

$59,455 $60,927 $62,450 $64,023 $65,623$50,024 $51,290 $52,570 $53,863 $55,207 $56,576

10 $24,187 $24,775 $25,390 $26,042 $26,670 $27,361 $32,492$28,743 $29,433 $30,189 $30,931 $31,686

$77,473 $79,406 $81,402 $83,424 $85,535 $87,674$66,800 $68,464 $70,204 $71,945 $73,736 $75,57944 $65,175

$57,996

$59,033 $60,530 $62,027 $63,588



Grade Job Title #POS Step 1/A1 Step 2/A2 Step 3/B1 Step 4/B2 Step 5/B3 Step 6/C1 Step 7/C2 Step 8/C3 Step 9/D1 Step 10/D2 Step 11/D3 Step 12/E1 Step 13/E2 Step 14/E3 Step 15/F1 Step 16/F2 Step 17/F3
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Index: 58 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

52 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $22,140 $22,689 $23,266 $23,854 $24,417 $25,070 $25,671 $26,324 $26,976 $27,629 $28,333 $29,012 $29,779 $30,509 $31,237 $32,044 $32,845
Processing Assistant V 2
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Admin Asst I 1
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 4
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 4
CS Supervisor I 1
IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Admin Asst III/Transp Coordinator 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $38,097 $39,044 $39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460
Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 0
Computer System Administrator I 1

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894 $59,339 $60,812 $62,321 $63,857 $65,483 $67,056 $68,720
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894 $59,339 $60,812 $62,321 $63,857 $65,483 $67,056 $68,720 $70,486 $72,265 $74,043 $75,887
81 Social Services Director 1 $68,626 $70,275 $72,018 $73,869 $75,734 $77,597 $79,529 $81,527 $83,552 $85,631 $87,776 $89,962 $92,202 $94,522 $96,883 $99,283 $101,738

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance

FY23 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS) - Revised/Effective: 8/16/22

61

63 $28,409 $29,088 $29,818 $30,534 $31,289 $32,057

$32,876$28,409 $29,088 $29,818 $30,534 $31,289 $32,057$27,732$25,748 $26,414 $27,041

$38,097 $39,044 $39,978 $40,925 $41,924$32,876 $33,682 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162

$38,097$33,682 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162

67 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162 $38,097 $39,044

$39,978$34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162 $38,097 $39,04465 $31,289 $32,057 $32,876 $33,682

$39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289

$46,364$40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289

$39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998

$46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150

$59,339$51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894$44,073 $45,289 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,85870



Washington County Executive Committee Members
Office Last Name First Name Street Address/P.O. Box City State Zip Phone E-mail Committee Assignments

VP Horton Paulique 992 St Davids Road Creswell NC 27928 252-619-3504 hortonfinancialservices@gmail.com VP 6th Year
Melton J. D. P. O. Box 26 Creswell NC 27928 252-797-4493 Roads & Bridges

Gill Ruffin 112 Longleaf Lane Plymouth NC 27962 252-741-1173 ruffin.gill@gmail.com Finance
Spruill Syble P. O Box 277 Creswell NC 27928 252-797-4386 rayandsyble@embarqmail.com Road Sides & Parks

SAA/Past PresidentCotton-West Kim 7580 Long Ridge Road Plymouth NC 27962 919-971-5828 kimcottenwest@gmail.com Rules
Moulden Denise 177 Old Roper Road Loop Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-3688 neecee32353@yahoo.com Rules
Brabble Knapp 1069 Airport Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-9801 kbrabble@washconc.org Airports

Albem. RPO Welsh Angela M. 512 South Church Street Hertford NC 27944 252-426-5775 awelsh@albemarlecommission.org
SAA/PP Manning Buster 6414 NC 99 South Pantego NC 27860 252-935-5307 manningfarms@gotricounty.com Past President

Lewis Lunetta 849 NC Highway 45 North Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9020 Publicity
Fleming Nellie Ann P.O. Box 322 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5357 Marketing/Communications

Norman Rona
307 Buncombe Street Roper, PO 

Box 302,  Edenton NC 27932 252-301-0166 History
Norman Norvilla 112A Somerset Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-506-2608 Roads & Bridges
Chesson Carolyn 119B Albermarle Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2041 Roads & Bridges
Franklin Deborah 5439 Mackeys Road Roper NC 27962 252-505-6220 Publicity
Phelps Carol 2250 Mt. Tabor Road Creswell NC 27928 County Commissioner
Walker Julius PO Box 358 Roper NC 27970 County Commissioner
Johnson Tracey 312 East 3rd Street Plymouth NC 27962 County Commissioner

Keyes Ann 152 Gee Street Plymouth NC 27962 County Commissioner
Sexton Bill 125 Sexton Farm Plymouth NC 27962 County Commissioner
Potter Curtis Po Box 1007 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5823 County Manager/Attorney
Roth Brian 124 East Water Street Plymouth NC 27962 Mayor of Plymouth

Blount Denise PO Box 217 Roper NC 27970 Mayor of Roper
Blount Edwin (Ray) PO Box 123 Creswell NC 27928 Mayor of Creswell
Esolen Timothy P.O. Box 1007 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2325 Register of Deeds

Davenport Sam 110 Rabbit Cross Road Creswell NC 27928 Citizen
Owens Sharon 2726 Old Cherry Road Creswell NC 27928 252-394-0666 Citizen

Swindell Lance 205 East Main Street Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114 Emergency Manager 
Pittman Allen 205 East Main Street Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114 Planning/Safety/inspections
Logan Brenda PO Box 183 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-6057 Creswell Town Commissioner

Ambrose Ron PO Box 224 Creswell NC 27928 Creswell Town Commissioner
Pledger Cora PO Box 91 Creswell NC 27928 252-217-0365 Citizen
Webb Jack (James) 1252 Jones White Road Roper NC 27970 252-741-0042 Citizen

Williams Alfreda PO Box 551 Roper NC 27970 919-750-3735 Citizen
Alexander Joyce PO Box 104 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5083 Citizen

Sawyer Tim 84 Spruill Town Road Creswell NC 27928 252-796 Tyrrell Co. DOT Employee
Chesson Carolyn 119B Albermarle Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2041 Citizen
Sheftall Audrey 2472 US Highway 64 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5844 Citizen

Littlejohn Betty PO Box 208 Roper NC 27970 252-793-9686 Citizen
Phelps Cole 2046 Weston Road Creswell NC 27928 Citizen/Former County Commissioner
Wilkins Clinton PO Box 568 Roper NC 27970 252-217-7384 Citizen
McCobb Roger 10212 NC Highway 32 North Roper NC 27970 252-799-7360 Citizen
Wallace Frances 16 Swain Road Roper NC 27970 252-741-0336 Citizen
Spruill Lessie PO Box 353 Creswell NC 27928 Citizen

Norman Arlo 15672 NC Highway 94 North Roper NC 27970 Deputy 
Barnes Johnny PO Box 969 Plymouth NC 27962 Washington County Sheriff

Norman Bernard 82 Sunrise Lane Plymouth NC 27962 Citizen
Sanders Bunny PO Box 357 Roper NC 27970 Former Mayor of Roper
Sutton Alonzo 206 Quail Drive Plymouth NC 27962 252-484-2347 Citizen
Cayton Guy 99 Ferris Drive Roper NC 27970 Washington County Sheriff Dept
White Harry 3078 NC Highway 45S Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9121 Retired Maps/GIS

Alexander Jean PO Box 295 Creswell NC 27928 Former County Commissioner



 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
 

RESOLUTION 2022-031 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 272 NORTH STREET, 
PLYMOUTH, BY ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County to sell real 
property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption of a resolution authorizing the appropriate 
official to dispose of the property at public auction subject to the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 

  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should be sold as public 
auction as surplus property; and 

1. 272 NORTH ST-PLYMOUTH, NC; Tax Pin #6767.17-01-3935; Deed Book 514, Page 409-410;  
2. GIS MAP (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated tax value and back taxes owed to the County: $4,532.47 (See Attachment B) 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioner of Washington County hereby resolves as follows: 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at www.govdeals.com the 
surplus property described above; advertising from September 6 – October 8, 2022 and bidding October 7 – 
October 28, 2022; following approval of this resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be posted at least 30 calendar 
days prior to the date on which bidding for the property opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, where feasible, by other 
electronic means through which notice of the electronic auction may be broadly advertised.  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the property to be sold, the date 
and time at which electronic bidding opens, the electronic address where information about the property to be 
sold can be found, a reference to the resolution authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and 
conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their next regularly scheduled 
meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 30 days of said report. 

 
ADOPTED this _____ day of _________________, 20_____. 

 
 

___________________________________ 
                                              Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

                                                                  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
    
ATTEST: ______________________________ 

      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                   Clerk to the Board 

 

                                                                                                                                                            

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

http://www.govdeals.com/
mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


ATTACHMENT A 

 

 
  



 
ATTACHMENT B: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
  

RESOLUTION 2022-034 
REMEMBERING 9/11 

 
WHEREAS, in an unprovoked and senseless act of terrorism, four civilian aircraft were hijacked on 

September 11, 2001, and crashed in New York City, Pennsylvania and the Pentagon, resulting in a 
momentous loss of innocent U.S. lives of all heritages; and 

 
WHEREAS, while we still continue to recover from the loss of innocent lives, the spirit of the U.S. 

has been revitalized, giving way to expressions of patriotism; and 
 
WHEREAS, inspired by the heroism of our nation’s public service personnel, military service 

members and countless volunteers, our nation found unity and strength; and 
 
WHEREAS, from the tragedy of September 11 emerged a stronger nation, renewed by the spirit of 

national pride, and a true love of country; and 
 
WHEREAS, Americans also have fought back against terror by choosing to overcome evil with 

good by loving their neighbors as they would like to be loved, contributing to relief efforts, and volunteering 
their time to aid those in need;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Board of Commissioners of Washington 

County, do hereby proclaim September 11, 2022, as the Anniversary of the attacks of 9/11 and also the 
9/11 National Day of Service and Remembrance in the County of Washington and urge our citizens to 
recognize the heroism of firefighters, rescue and law enforcement personnel, military service members and 
the many volunteers who responded to these tragic events with courage, selfless compassion, determination 
and skill; and to remember the victims and innocent lives lost as a result of the tragic events on September 
11, 2001.  

 
PROCLAIMED This the 6th day of September, 2022. 

                                                                        
_________________________________ 

 Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2022-035 Page 1 of 5 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

RESOLUTION 2022-035 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF DEED  

REGARDING THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO NCGS 158.7.1 

WHEREAS, Washington County owns certain real property consisting of approximately 11.83+/- acres 
as more particularly described and shown in a map entitled “Survey of: Washington County Commerce 
Center Tract One” dated January 26, 2010 and revised March 27, 2010 by Timothy J. Esolen, PLS, being 
recorded in Plat Cabinet 3, Slide 33H, in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office, and for 
additional reference purposes only, having a Tax Parcel ID Number of 6766417088; and  

WHEREAS, the County previously constructed and partially completed a 25,000+/- square foot 
industrial shell building, together with certain other improvements and infrastructure serving said 
building, which are situated upon and considered part of the property described above; and  

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 158-7.1 authorizes a county to undertake an economic 
development project by conveying property to a company in order to cause the company to locate or 
expand its operations within the county; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 independently permits a county to sell 
property by upset bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, having received an initial offer to purchase the property from Triple Waves Industrial 
Laundry, LLC, which already operates a commercial laundry facility within Washington County, the 
Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution 2021-026 on November 1st, 2021 conditionally authorizing 
the sale of such property pursuant to the terms stated therein, which included without limitation exposure 
of the offer to an upset bid process and holding a subsequent public hearing to be conducted with the final 
high bidder regarding the intended use of said property; and 

WHEREAS, Triple Waves Industrial Laundry, LLC became the last and final highest bidder on or 
about May 9th, 2022 having bid the final highest amount of $552,000; and 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

  JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Washington County Resolution 2022-035  Page 2 of 5 
 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was duly noticed and properly held on June 6th, 2022 to discuss and 
consider the conditional sale of the property to the final highest bidder for the intended purpose and uses 
described therein and other considerations typically reviewed pursuant to NCGS 158-7.1 property 
conveyances; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board thereafter directed staff to prepare a resolution approving the transfer of the 

commerce center property to the final high bidder, subject to certain applicable terms and conditions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Washington County hereby finds and resolves as 
follows: 

 
1. THAT, pursuant to the authority vested in it by NCGS 160A-269 and/or NCGS 158-7.1 and in 

consideration of the assurances provided for hereinafter, The Board of County Commissioners, for the 
County of Washington hereby approves and authorizes the sale of that certain 11.83+/- acre parcel as 
more particularly described and shown in a map entitled “Survey of: Washington County Commerce 
Center Tract One” dated January 26, 2010 and revised March 27, 2010 by Timothy J. Esolen, PLS, 
being recorded in Plat Cabinet 3, Slide 33H, in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office, 
together with the previously constructed 25,000+/- square foot industrial shell building situated 
thereon, subject to any terms and conditions set forth herein, including without limitation the payment 
by the successful high bidder of the final bid/purchase price of $552,000.  

 
2. THAT, in addition to the independent authority to sell this property granted under NCGS 160A-269, 

this sale has also been analyzed by and is determined by the Board, to be in compliance with the 
benefits and objective requirements of NCGS 158-7.1(d), in that the property will be sold subject to 
Restrictive Covenants restricting the sale or other disposition for certain periods of time, and the 
property shall be used exclusively for industrial and commercial purposes specifically related to 
operation a commercial laundry facility as represented by Triple Waves Industrial Laundry, LLC, 
unless otherwise waived or agreed in writing by the County. 

 
3. THAT, the last combined total tax value for the improved property was estimated at $843,200 

without accounting for necessary repairs or additional upfit.  That the only actual 
improvements to the property itself (which possesses a recent tax value of $119,200) currently 
consists of a 25,000+/- square foot industrial shell building (last valued at $638,300 in its 
unfinished condition, but not accounting for presently required extensive repairs to its existing 
raised entryway sidewalks estimated to cost in excess of $85,000), and external outbuildings/ 
parking infrastructure (valued at $85,700).   

 
a. THAT, in addition to entryway sidewalk repairs, the shell building also requires 

substantial additional upfits to complete the building in a realistically move in ready 
and useable condition, prior to the installation of any specific industrial/commercial 
equipment.  Such upfit needs include without limitation the installation of a finished 
floor (presently gravel finished), all HVAC equipment/components, all internal 
plumbing equipment/components, refinishing of internal ceiling surfaces and some 



Washington County Resolution 2022-035  Page 3 of 5 
 

light fixture repairs, and installation of loading dock and/or bay doors.  The additional 
cost of such upfits is reasonably estimated to be well in excess of $300,000. 
 

b. THAT, the sale of the property will permit the completion of necessary repairs and 
upfits as well as the initial installation of additional commercial laundry equipment 
represented by Triple Waves to be valued at an additional taxable value of $500,000 to 
$1,000,000. 

 
c. THAT, the sale of the property is also anticipated to generate an estimated 25-50 

additional local jobs within one to two years which have been represented by Triple 
Waves to pay in excess of a minimum $12 per hour, with a number of the jobs paying 
at or above the Washington County average weekly wage of $802.00.   

 
4. THAT, after a full reading of NCGS 158-7.1, the Board believes the purchase price, plus use of 

the property for the aforesaid certain industrial and commercial laundry purposes, with the 
improvements to be made to the real property, the increases in taxable assets, and the 
additional employment opportunities, all based on contractually enforceable commitments to 
be made by the Buyer to the County to enforce such benefits to the County, will produce 
employment and property tax benefits to the County in compliance with NCGS 158-7.1, and 
that such sale is compliant with the economic benefit to the County per NCGS Chapter 158. 

             
5. THAT, the Board has considered, and concludes following a duly noticed public hearing held 

June 6th, 2022 with an opportunity for considering opposition, of which none appeared or has 
been presented at any time since to this Board, that the consideration for the conveyance is 
equal to the value of the property as such has been determined pursuant to the standards 
established in NCGS 158-7.1(d) because of the tax base and/or employment benefits.  

 
 

6. THAT, the Board has concluded, conditioned on the foregoing stipulations and payment of the 
cash consideration of $552,000, as well as the execution of a contract between the Buyer and 
the County, providing for the Buyer’s obligations as set forth in the following provisions, that 
the sale is hereby finally approved, authorized, and shall be made. The terms of the sales 
contract and conditions of approving this conveyance shall be as follows: 

 
a. Initially Advertised Terms of Sale: 

i. The property shall be conveyed by the county in its present AS-IS WHERE-IS 
condition, without any warranties or guarantees, and subject to any and all 
defects, latent or patent, material or otherwise, including without limitation the 
physical condition of the building and supporting infrastructure, as well as the 
legal status of the title to the property which shall be conveyed subject to any 
and all  recorded restrictive covenants, easements, liens, notices, or any other 



Washington County Resolution 2022-035 Page 4 of 5 

matters of title recorded in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office or 
otherwise appearing in any publicly available records. 

ii. The property shall be conveyed subject to a restrictive covenant running with
the land in perpetuity that the property must be used at all times solely for
industrial/commercial purposes and in general conformity with any and all
applicable laws related thereto.

iii. The buyer shall pay the full purchase price for the property in cash at the time of
closing which shall take place within 30 days after the Board has approved the
final high offer by this Resolution.  Failure to close within 30 days of final
approval by the Board for no fault or delay caused by the County shall result in
the buyer’s forfeiture of the bid deposit unless otherwise agreed in writing
between the parties.

b. Additional Terms of Sale:

i. That the buyer will make repairs and/or improvements, all in a cost value of not
less than $250,000, and all of which must be achieved within 1.5 years of
closing upon the property.

ii. That the buyer will install not less than $500,000.00 worth of taxable
manufacturing equipment/machinery in the shell building within 2 years of
closing upon the property, which equipment shall remain in place and taxable
by Washington County for at least 5 years.

iii. That within 2 years of closing upon the property, the buyer will have, in its
employment on the property, not less than 12 employees who are earning not
less than $12 per week, at least 3 of whom are earning not less than the median
average wage for Washington County.  That such minimum employment
requirements shall be maintained for at least 5 years.

iv. That if any of the three preceding conditions fails for any reason, or County
cannot verify compliance due to failure of the buyer to cooperate, then buyer
shall be obligated by the terms of the contract required by this resolution, to be
shown in the deed of conveyance as conditions subsequent that survive the
closing or otherwise to be preserved as a Restrictive Covenant, to either: 1) re-
convey the parcel back to Washington County for no consideration and without
credit or repayment by the County of any purchase price, improvement costs,
taxes paid, or any other amounts; or 2) to pay Washington County additional
consideration equal to the reasonable value of any and all lost tax revenues and
the actual value of any unpaid wages, for any and all relevant periods, which
shall be paid within thirty (30) days’ notice and demand by Washington County
for the same, unless both parties otherwise agree.



Washington County Resolution 2022-035 Page 5 of 5 

v. That the conveyance of the property shall be made subject to a “Permanent
Utility Easement” and “Access Easement” for purposes of accessing and
maintaining the utility lines and/or the lift station serving the shell building
which shall be recorded prior to closing and which are more particularly shown
within a map entitled “New Parcel, Utility and Access Easements Exhibit for
Washington County on the Lands of Washington County” dated March 2015
and signed 9/14/16 by Jay B. Decoursey, PLS.  Additionally, that parcel
depicted therein as a “New Parcel” consisting of 0.082 acres upon which the
actual lift station was constructed shall not be conveyed, but instead shall be
retained by Washington County for operation of said utility lines.

7. THAT, on the basis of the foregoing contractual commitment, to be assured by a contract as
approved by the County Attorney, as meeting the foregoing terms of sale which terms shall
also be reflected in the deed of conveyance as drawn by the County Attorney, the Board
concludes that the conveyance of the property will stimulate the local economy, promote
business, and result in the creation of a substantial number of jobs in Washington County that
pay at or above the median average wage in the county.

8. THAT, based on the foregoing, and following the County Attorney’s Certification to the
Chairman that the contract meeting the foregoing requirements has been executed, then the
Chairman, or Vice Chairman, of the Board is authorized to execute a deed of conveyance as
aforesaid, immediately and without further review or action of this Board.

THIS RESOLUTION is hereby adopted by a ______________ vote of the Board this the ______ day of 

_________________, 20____. 

_____________________________________ 
Tracey A. Johnson 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

 Clerk to the Board 



 

 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
 

RESOLUTION 2022-035 
DECLARING SEPTEMBER 2022 AS “PREPAREDNESS MONTH” 

IN WASHINGTON COUNTY 
 

 WHEREAS, National Preparedness Month is an observance each September to raise awareness 
about the importance of preparing for disasters and emergencies that could happen at any time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Counties throughout North Carolina have been affected by a variety of emergencies, 
including mudslides, wildfires, flooding, earthquakes, and the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the peak period of hurricane season is historically mid-August through October, and 
September 10 marks the peak of hurricane season; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Brunswick County Commissioner Frank Williams recently completed his term as 
President of the N.C. Association of County Commissioners, which was focused on the 100 Counties 
Prepared initiative; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Washington County Commissioner Keyes taught the inaugural 100 Counties Prepared 
training, Washington County Commissioners Phelps and Walker and Washington County Manager Potter 
completed it, which focused on training county commissioners on how to effectively lead during 
emergencies, compiling resources to assist commissioners during emergency situations, and helping 
commissioners establish relationships with key emergency management partners; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2022 theme of National Preparedness Month is “A Lasting Legacy. The life you 
have built is worth protecting. Prepare for disasters to create a lasting legacy for you and your family”; and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Washington County Board of Commissioners desires that every household, property 
owner, and business in Washington County be prepared for potential emergencies. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Washington County 
hereby declares September 2022 as Preparedness Month in Washington County and encourages all citizens 
to provide for “A Lasting Legacy” to their loved ones by developing an emergency plan, building an emergency 
kit, and communicating their emergency plan to all members of their household and/or workplace.  
 
PROCLAIMED this the 6th day of September, 2022. 

                                                                        
_________________________________ 

 Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
Attest: 
______________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
         Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
 

PROCLAMATION 2022-037 
CONSTITUTION WEEK 2022 

 
  
 WHEREAS, September 17, 2022 marks the two hundred and thirty fifth (235th) 
anniversary of the drafting of the Constitution of the United States of America by the 
Constitutional Convention; and,   
 

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to officially recognize this magnificent document 
and the anniversary of its creation; and,  

 
WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to officially recognize the patriotic celebrations 

which will commemorate the occasion; and,  
 

WHEREAS, public law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by 
the President of the United States of America designating September 17 through September 
23 as Constitution Week;  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of County Commissioners do 
hereby proclaim September 17 through September 23, 2022 to be  

 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 
 

in Washington County, and ask our citizens to reaffirm the ideals the framers of the 
Constitution had in 1787. 

 
 
PROCLAIMED this the 6th day of September, 2022. 
 

                                                                        
_________________________________ 

 Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
Attest: 
______________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
         Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Department Information Update:  Sheriff’s Office, Sheriff Johnny Barnes 

and/or Chief Deputy Arlo Norman 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Sheriff Johnny Barnes and/or Chief Deputy Arlo Norman will give the Board an update 
on what is happening in the Sheriff’s Office. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO: 4 
 
       DATE:     September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Late for Elderly Property Tax Exemption, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator will speak to the Board on the abovementioned document 
from Ms. Annie Knox. Please see attached.  
 
The Board may either approve or deny the request. 
 
  















WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  

       
 (252) 793-1176 PHONE 
 (252) 793-2849 FAX 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Sherri Wilkins 
  Tax Administrator 
 
DATE:  September 6, 2022  
 
RE:  Approval or Denial of Late Application for Property Tax Relief – Annie E Knox 
 
In regards to the late application from Annie E Knox for Elderly Exclusion, per North Carolina 
General Statute § 105-282.1 (a1), the board of county commissioners can approve a late 
application upon a showing of good cause by the applicant for failure to make a timely 
application.  Ms. Knox submitted her application by the deadline of June 1, 2022, however, I did 
not receive all her invoice information until after the deadline.  She submitted a copy of her tax 
return with the application, but it was discovered to be incorrect and when she was informed of 
the error she submitted additional information.  If this application and correct income 
information had been received during the application period it would have been approved.  
 
Approved this 6th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
             
      Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 

 

 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  

       
 (252) 793-1176 PHONE 
 (252) 793-2849 FAX 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Sherri Wilkins 
  Tax Administrator 
 
DATE:  September 6, 2022  
 
RE:  Approval or Denial of Late Application for Property Tax Relief – Annie E Knox 
 
In regards to the late application from Annie E Knox for Elderly Exclusion, per North Carolina 
General Statute § 105-282.1 (a1), the board of county commissioners can approve a late 
application upon a showing of good cause by the applicant for failure to make a timely 
application.  Ms. Knox submitted her application by the deadline of June 1, 2022, however, I did 
not receive all her invoice information until after the deadline.  She submitted a copy of her tax 
return with the application, but it was discovered to be incorrect and when she was informed of 
the error she submitted additional information.  If this application and correct income 
information had been received during the application period it would have been approved.  
 
Denied this 6th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
             
      Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 

 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  September 6, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:        RESO2022-033 Pea Ridge Transmission Expansion & Presentation, Mr. 

Richard Livingston, Senior Project Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Richard Livingston, Senior Project Director will give a presentation (attached) on the 
Pea Ridge Transmission Expansion project and will be asking for your approval on the 
attached Resolution. 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
  
 

RESOLUTION 2022-033 

APPROVING APPLICATION FOR DEQ DWI FUNDING 
 

 WHEREAS, The County of Washington has need for and intends to construct, plan for, 
or conduct a study in projects described as Pea Ridge Transmission Improvements and Town 
of Roper Interconnection Repairs, and 

 WHEREAS, The County of Washington intends to request State loan and/or grant 
assistance for the projects. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COMMISIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, 

1. That the County of Washington, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining 
costs of the project, if approved for a State loan and/or grant award. 
 

2. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 
completion of construction thereof. 
 

3. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect, on or before completion of the 
project, a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide 
adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and 
the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 
 

4. That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement, a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the County of Washington, to 
make a scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the County of Washington 
any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of 
the loan. 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

5. If applying for a regional project, that the Applicant will partner and work with other units 
of local government or utilities in conducting the project, including the Town of Roper. 
 

6. That the County Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby 
authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the State of 
North Carolina for a loan and/or grant to aid in the study of, or construction of, the 
project described above. 

 
7. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 

to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection 
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to 
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

 
8. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, 

State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to 
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
ADOPTED this 6th day of September, 2022. 

 
 

___________________________________ 
                                    Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

                                                 Washington County Board of Commissioners 
    
ATTEST: ______________________________ 

      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                   Clerk to the Board 
  



Page 3 of 3 
 

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 
 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk to the Board of the Washington County Board 

of County Commissioners does hereby certify that the above/attached resolution is a true and 

correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an application with the State of North 

Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Washington County Board of 

County Commissioners duly held on the 6th day of September 2022 and further, that such 

resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office.  IN 

WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 6th day of September 2022. 

 

 
            Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
 
 
 

           Clerk to the Board 
 

 



Pea Ridge 
Main 
Expansion
Richard Livingston



Project Background

Pre 2016
• Hydraulic Analysis 

performed
• Pea Ridge/Mackey's 

listed as area of 
concern for current 
level of development 
as well as future 
growth. 

2016 
• Rivers & Associates 

selected to complete 
Preliminary 
Engineering Services 
(PES) for main 
expansion project

• PES Cost ~$34,000

~2017
• Project is delayed 

• Hospital challenges
• Turnover
• Other pressing issues

• Application materials 
are retained by Rivers 
& Associates

2021/2022
• CMO staffs up, adds 

organizational capacity
• Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law 
creates new funding 
opportunities for 
project

• CMO reengages Rivers 
& Associates to 
reinvestigate project



• Current Demand: 
• Pea Ridge BPS “starves” supply side 

connections when on. (as low as 18 
psi when operational)

• Demand not met when Pea Ridge 
tank is being filled.

• Future Demand:
• 447 Subdivided parcels in the image 

to the right
• 1,200 estimated (8/2016) between 

Pea Ridge and Mackey’s Ferry
• 93% of anticipated development is 

within proposed area

Revisiting Necessity



Additional Financing Strategies

Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Bill 

& ARPA Funds

NC DEQ 
Division of Water 

Infrastructure

State Grants 
and/or Loans

• Project pre-scores at ±48 points
• Expansion projects not scored as heavily as 

replacement/remediation projects

• Applications scoring as low as 40 
have been approved during 
previous cycles.

• Rivers & Associates have agreed 
to complete the application at 
no additional up front cost to 
the County. 



Staff Recommendation

• Pass resolution 2022-33 
authorizing a DEQ DWI grant 
application for the project

• Authorize the County Manager 
to contract with River’s and 
Associates to renew/redo USDA 
funding application at a cost of 
~$30,000



Questions? 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:  September 6, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:      State of Emergency Discussion, Mr. Curtis Potter, County Manager/  

County Attorney 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will lead a discussion regarding lifting the current State of Emergency (which 
was due to COVID-19).  See attached. 
 
If any of you have any concerns, please contact Mr. Potter as soon 
as possible and before the meeting on Tuesday night. 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 1 
 

                 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

FAX (252) 793-1183 

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: September 6th, 2022   MEMO Date: September 1st, 2022                 ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Local COVID19 State of Emergency Discussion 
DEPARTMENT: EM/Health 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Declaration of SOE 3/18/20 (2pages) 
B- First Amendment to Declaration of SOE 7/24/20 (4pages) 

PURPOSE: To discuss rescinding the local State of Emergency Declaration related to COVID19. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

- Refer to attached local declarations for additional background. 
- NCDPS EM Director William Rays emailed counties on 8/16/22 to notify us that after 889 days starting on 

3/10/20, Governor Cooper announced the end of the State of Emergency for COVID-19 effective 8/16/22. 
- The North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services is moving many of the COVID-specific 

work streams into their daily operations.  
- State Emergency Management is adjusting its unified command operational tempo to appropriately meet 

the needs of local communities and SERT partners, but also balance other ongoing operations and needs 
for the Division and SERT. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS/IMPACTS:  N/A 
 
STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS: 

- Staff is not aware of any negative health or financial impacts related to lifting/rescinding the local 
Declaration of Emergency for COVID19. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  

- Discuss the pros/cons of lifting the local COVID19 related Declaration of a State of Emergency, and 

unless otherwise decided by the Board, STAFF RECOMMENDS VOTING TO LIFT THE LOCAL 

DECLARATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY FOR COVID19. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 

JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

DECLARATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 

Effective: Wednesday, March 18th, 2020 @ 10:00 AM  
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or death, 
which is a new strain of coronavirus previously unidentified in humans and which can spread 
from person to person; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 10th, 2020, the State of North Carolina through the Office of 
Governor, Roy Cooper, issued Executive Order No. 116 titled “Declaration of a State of 
Emergency to Coordinate Response and Protective Actions to Prevent the Spread of Covid-19”; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 13th, 2020, the United States of America through the Office of 

President, Donald Trump, issued a Proclamation Declaring a National Emergency Concerning 
the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Outbreak; and 

 
WHEREAS, in consultation with local, state, and federal health care professionals and 

based upon guidance from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and NC Department of Health 
& Human Services (NCDHHS) arrangements must be made immediately to take such actions as 
are deemed necessary to protect and preserve public safety; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the above-described disaster, I have determined that there is 

an imminent threat of, or existing conditions have caused or will cause, widespread or severe 
damage, injury, or loss of life or property, and public safety authorities will be unable to 
maintain public order or afford adequate protection for lives or property; and 

 
WHEREAS, declaring a State of Emergency and imposing the restrictions and 

prohibitions ordered herein is necessary to maintain order and protect public health, safety, and 
welfare, and to secure property. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority vested in me as the Chairman of the 
Board of Commissioners of Washington County under Article 1A of Chapter 166A of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and the Washington County State of Emergency Ordinance: 
 
Section 1. A State of Emergency is hereby declared within the jurisdiction of Washington  

County as more particularly described in Section 2 below. 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF1ACA48-9756-4692-AB7A-E32BC312000A



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19  Page 2 of 2 

Section 2. The emergency area covered by this state of emergency shall be: 
 

☒ All unincorporated areas within the jurisdiction of Washington County; 
 

☒ All areas within the jurisdiction of Washington County  
(At the request and consent of the Mayors). 

 

Section 3. The following specific restrictions and prohibitions are imposed:  
 

☒ No Specific Restrictions or Prohibitions Are Imposed at This Time. 

 
Section 4. I hereby order all law enforcement officers and employees and all other emergency  

management and/or emergency response personnel subject to our control to cooperate in 
the enforcement and implementation of the provisions of this Declaration, all applicable 
local ordinances, state and federal laws, and the Washington County Emergency 
Operations Plan. 

 
Section 5. I hereby order this declaration: (a) to be distributed to the news media and other  

organizations calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public; (b) to 
be filed with Clerk to the Washington County Board of County Commissioners; (c) to be 
posted at the Washington County Courthouse; and (d) to be distributed to others as 
necessary to ensure proper implementation of this declaration. 

 

Section 6.  This declaration shall take effect on the date and time specifically indicated in the 
heading hereof, and shall remain in effect until modified or rescinded. 
 

 

DECLARED this 18th day of March, 2020 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
D. Cole Phelps, Esq.  

Chairman of the Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Washington Board of County Commissioners 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF1ACA48-9756-4692-AB7A-E32BC312000A



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19 First Amendment 7.24.20 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
Effective: Friday, July 24th, 2020 @ 8:30AM 

to the 
DECLARATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 
Effective: Wednesday, March 18th, 2020 @ 10:00 AM  

 
WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or death, 

which is a new strain of coronavirus previously unidentified in humans and which can spread 
from person to person; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 10th, 2020, the State of North Carolina through the Office of 

Governor, Roy Cooper, issued Executive Order No. 116 titled “Declaration of a State of 
Emergency to Coordinate Response and Protective Actions to Prevent the Spread of COVID-
19”; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 13th, 2020, the United States of America through the Office of 

President, Donald Trump, issued a Proclamation Declaring a National Emergency Concerning 
the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Outbreak; and 

 
WHEREAS, in consultation with local, state, and federal health care professionals and 

based upon guidance from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and NC Department of Health 
& Human Services (NCDHHS) arrangements must be made immediately to take such actions as 
are deemed necessary to protect and preserve public safety; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the above-described disaster, on March 18th, 2020 pursuant to 

the authority vested in me as the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of Washington 
County under Article 1A of Chapter 166A of the North Carolina General Statutes and the 
Washington County State of Emergency Ordinance, a Declaration of a State of Emergency was 
declared for the reasons more particularly described therein; and 

 
WHEREAS, there appears to be substantial and increasing scientific evidence to 

conclude that the wearing of face coverings in common areas and other public places, and 
particularly among individuals in close proximity to one another for any extended period of time 
significantly slows and limits the spread of COVID-19, which has led to an increasing amount of 
medical guidance from the CDC and NCDHHS to recommend the public routinely follow such 
practices; and 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0AD2D93C-113F-47DA-9B2C-FA32469631F9



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19 First Amendment 7.24.20 
Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS,  on June 24, 2020, North Carolina Governor Roy Cooper issued Executive 
Order No. 147 which requires the use of face coverings while in public spaces and in certain 
businesses and facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 16, 2020, Chief Justice Beasley of the Supreme Court of North 

Carolina issued Emergency Directive 21 which requires the use of face coverings while in the 
common areas of, or interacting with other persons, within any court facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, there is some ambiguity as to the applicability of such orders in certain 

county owned or controlled facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, as Chairman of the Washington County Board of Commissioners, after 

consulting with local healthcare officials, I desire to extend the certain face covering 
requirements of Executive Order No. 147 to all Washington County buildings and facilities; 
and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority vested in me as the Chairman of the 

Washington County Board of Commissioners under Article 1A of Chapter 166A of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and the Washington County State of Emergency Ordinance I hereby 
proclaim and declare that the Declaration of a State of Emergency previously declared on 
March 18, 2020 is hereby amended as follows: 

 
1. A new Subsection (A) (Wearing of Face Coverings) is hereby added to Section 3 of the 

Original Declaration of a State of Emergency to read as follows: 
 

A. WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS: 
 

i. Except as specifically stated herein, all members of the public who are present 
in any Washington County owned or controlled building or facility are required 
to wear a clean face covering. A face covering is a material that covers the nose 
and mouth. It can be secured to the head with ties or straps or simply wrapped 
around the lower face. It can be made of a variety of materials such as cotton, 
silk, or linen. A cloth covering may be factory-made or sewn by hand or can be 
improvised from household items such as scarfs, T-shirts, sweatshirts, or towels. 
While wearing a face covering, it is still essential to maintain social distance 
insofar as possible.   

 
ii. Social Distance shall be construed as the amount of distance between persons 

(or any other specific guidance or parameters established for measuring or 
maintaining social distance) as defined or established by the current parameters 
of any of the following sources listed by decreasing order of priority, and as 
each may be modified or amended from time to time: 

 
1. Social Distancing Parameters established by any Executive Order issued by 

the Governor of the State of North Carolina, and  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0AD2D93C-113F-47DA-9B2C-FA32469631F9



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19 First Amendment 7.24.20 
Page 3 of 4 

2. Social Distancing Parameters established within any guidance provided by 
the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services (NCDHHS), 
and  
 

3. Social Distancing Parameters established within any guidance provided by 
the Centers for Disease Control (CDC),  

 
iii. Exceptions: Face coverings shall not be required for the reasons listed below, 

nor for any other reasons established as exceptions to the requirements that face 
coverings be generally worn in public settings by any applicable Executive 
Orders issued by the Governor of the State of North Carolina: 

 
1. Persons whose religious beliefs prevent them from wearing a face covering. 
2. Persons who cannot wear a face covering due to a medical or behavioral 

condition. 
3. Children under 12 years of age. 
4. While temporarily removed to consume food or beverage provided social 

distancing can be maintained during such consumption. 
5. In private, individual offices where there is not regular interaction with the 

general public, and where social distancing can be maintained. 
6. When complying with directions of law enforcement officers. 
7. In settings where it is not practical or feasible to wear a face covering, 

subject to review and approval by the Public Health Director or County 
Manager. 

 
Anyone who declines to wear a face covering for these reasons shall not be 
required to produce documentation or any other proof of any exempt condition.  
 
If an individual states that an exemption applies, County staff may choose to offer 
a reasonable measure approved by the County Manager to deliver any County 
services via alternative means to avoid unnecessary exposure. 

 
iv. Applicability: The requirements established in this amended order shall 

supplement and be in addition to the other requirements associated with the 
COVID-19 State of Emergency within the County, including, but not limited to, 
any requirements established by the State of North Carolina.  
 

v. Enforcement: Any individual who willfully disregards or fails to comply with 
these provisions shall be asked to exit the county building or facility. Refusal to 
exit said building or facility may result in the treatment of such individuals 
presence as an unauthorized trespass and may be subject to civil or criminal 
remedies including without limitation criminal prosecution to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

 
vi. Effective Date and Time:  This Amendment shall take effect as of the date and 

time first stated above, and shall remain in effect until modified or rescinded.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0AD2D93C-113F-47DA-9B2C-FA32469631F9



Washington County Declaration of a State of Emergency – COVID-19 First Amendment 7.24.20 
Page 4 of 4 

 
HEREBY DECLARED THIS THE 23RD DAY OF JULY, 2020 
 
 
 
 

BY:  ________________________________________________ 
D. Cole Phelps, Chairman  
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Washington Board of County Commissioners 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0AD2D93C-113F-47DA-9B2C-FA32469631F9



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. The Finance Report is also 
attached. 
 
 
 
 



























To: Board of Commissioners BA #: 2023- 033

From: Curtis Potter, County Manager
Missy Dixon, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Airport Grants/Projects & Grants Fund

Please authorize the finance officer to make the following budgetary adjustments:

Description Old + or (-) New

38-3800-000 Appropriated Fund Balance (45,000.00)          (300,000.00)        (345,000.00)        
38-9800-058 Transfer to Projects/Grants Fund -                      300,000.00         300,000.00         

58-3980-038 Transfer from Airport Grants Fund -                      (300,000.00)        (300,000.00)        
58-3990-000 Appropriated Fund Balance (349,936.00)        300,000.00         (49,936.00)          

 

Balanced: (394,936.00)           -                         (394,936.00)           

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

Ariport Grants/Projects & Grants fund

This amendment is to budget to transfer Airport Fund Balance over to the Projects/Grants Fund to use as part of the match 

required by the Direct State Appropriation awarded to the County to construct a new Aviation/Emergency Services Building in the 

near future.  This fund balance is monies that were never properly moved over to the general fund when the old airport Runway 21 

Taxiway Project was completed back in 2015 and therefore are available for use towards this grant match.

Washington County
BUDGET AMENDMENT

September 6, 2022

Account Code



































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   8 
 
       DATE:     September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items for Discussion (Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA): 
 Purchasing Policy 
 NCACC Legislative Goals 
 METCON School Construction Contract 

 
Items for Information: 
 ABC Board Budget Amendment—see attachment 
 Department Head Reports from August 2022—see attachment 
 Statistics Reports from August 2022—see attachment 
 EIC Resource Fair—see attachment 
 Register of Deed Rollup Summary—see attachment 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
September 6, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 

EMS STAFFING:   

The EMS Division now has two Full Time Paramedic positions available.  We lost the second 
Paramedic to a larger salary in a neighboring county.  The Transport Division has two Full Time 
EMT positions available. We are also accepting applications for part time positions.  Deputy 
Director Annette Ward and Paramedic started teaching a Basic EMT course at the BCCC Roper 
Campus in early August with a promising group of students.  

EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 

PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 30 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units. We are 
seeing an increase in patients with COVID-like illnesses.   

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  

UNC PECC+ Program : Paramedic/PECC Coordinator Jessica Howery is working with the NC 
Office of EMS and EMS For Children NC program to obtain “Carter Kits” for our EMS units.  
This kit contains tools that allow our providers to communicate with Autistic children.     

Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:   We are putting together a Pilot Program to train the public 
in “Hands Only” with a local church group.  

Lots of community activities recently.  Getting our kids ready to go back to school and 
celebrating the 100th Anniversary of Plymouth Volunteer Fire Department. Also, visits with a 
local daycare.   

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

Thank you for your continued support of EMS.   

 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
We went to a back-to-school basketball tournament in Ahoskie and we won and was given 
school supplies. We are still signing up for football and having a scrimmage game on Aug 
27.  Cheerleader rosters are full.  We are planning to go to Open House at Roper Mid School to 
recruit some more players for our upcoming league.   
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Board of Election will be in a virtual conference class, August 30 and 31st. We have 
completely transitioned to the Washington County Roper Annex. I am now collecting 
application for absentee ballots.  
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Summer Reading Program: 

• The SRP kicked off on June 22nd at 2:00 PM with a keychain craft (13 participants) 
hosted by the Washington County Library and will run until August 2nd with one program 
a week. 



 
 

 

• Susan Swain will host a “Sock Puppet” Creation Project on June 29th; this program is 
open to fifteen registered participants only. 

• July will kick off with another program hosted by the Washington County Library with a 
nature scavenger hunt provided by the NC Department of Natural and Cultural 
Resources. 

• We are hosting a weekly “Friday Afternoon Movie;” this series kicked off on June 24th 
with a 2:00 PM showing of Disney/Pixar’s Finding Nemo. (21 participants) 

• We have added an ice cream social to our schedule to commemorate the end of Summer 
Reading. 

• For SRP and Movie Schedules, please visit our Facebook or stop by the library to pick up 
a hard copy. 

 
Grassroots Programming: 

• The Stanley Baird Group kicked off our Grassroots Series on June 3rd at 6:00 PM with a 
Jazz concert open to the public (80+ participants) 

• L. Jamal Walton hosted a “Creating Comics” Program on June 20th – 21st for ages 16+; 
out of the ten participants who reserved a space, only 2 showed up both days with 3 
showing up for 1 day. 

• Dr. Melinda Ratchford hosted a “Titanic: Ship of Dreams” presentation on June 22nd and 
there were two people in attendance. 

• Donna Washington hosted a storytelling program to end our series on June 24th at noon 
with 13 participants. 

Other Library Business: 
• Storytime attendance has taken off with the start of the SRP; on June 22nd, there were 17 

participants! These in-person sessions will take place every Wednesday at 10:30 AM 
with a craft to follow. 

• We will issue reminder cards to participants who sign up for programs requiring a sign-
up because we have run into the problem of people “forgetting” they signed up. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 



 
 

 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We have been extremely busy. This month we were without Denise Jones due to 
her retirement and Covid hit our office.  For a couple of weeks, we had different 
ones out sick.  We are working diligently to catch up. 

2. We continue to collect payments for accounts that have been referred for 
foreclosure – every time we get a payment, receive correspondence (such as the 
need to add costs) or are notified in any way about a property in foreclosure we 
notify ZLS and update the accounts in foreclosure.  As information is received 
from Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) we update the accounts.  We also handle 
phone calls, emails or visits from persons whose property are in foreclosure and 
persons interested in buying property in foreclosure. 

3. The next foreclosure sale is scheduled for September 9, 2022. 
4. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions in regards to motor vehicles.  
5. Each Monday, I sit in on an Assessor’s Town Hall Zoom meeting.  Different topics 

are discussed from what conferences might be going on to what each office may be 
experiencing (issues that they have, differences in what each county deals with). A 
wide variety of subjects.  

6. Continue to respond to phone calls, emails and all requests from taxpayers, 
mortgage companies, lawyers, and any others in regards to taxation and 
assessments. We receive multiple requests daily.  The questions range from tax bill 
inquiry to deferred taxes to exemptions, etc.  A very broad range of inquiries.   

7. Continue to verify PINs for various reasons – usually for the filing of deeds – if 
Richard Livingston, the new GIS Mapping Director, is out of his office.  
Corresponding with him, as needed, if there is a question or issue with a property 
or properties that includes GIS.  

8. Applications for the tax clerk position have been reviewed and I have given them 
back to Fetima for her to set up interviews.   

9. Received the assessments for the Public Utility Companies’ billing.  The NC DOR 
sends us the values to bill about this time each year.  There was an increase in 
assessment of approx. 32%.  Darlene Harrison is working on getting those tax bills 
out this week.         

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

1. Inspections    44 (All county schools included) 
2. Permits Issued    32 

a) Demolition consult    1 
b) Project Consults via phone 15 
c) Plan Reviews     2 
d) Map Reviews     2 

3. Planning board – no quorum – August 18 
4. Continued work on CRS Inspection for Washington County – now completed 
5. Worked with Fire Department at Mid-County for ISO Inspection 



 
 

 

6. Continuing Education day for Building Inspectors (all day) 8-2-2022 
7. Commissioners meeting online – for Geenex presentation 
8. Received notification from Department of Insurance regarding Plymouth and Roper Fire 

Department Inspection scores – both departments improved, and homeowners should see 
a reduction in homeowners’ premiums effective December 2022.  No scores are returned 
for other departments, but we have received notification that all departments passed. 

9. Continuing to gather information to update zoning ordinance, regarding CI/CC 
designation 

10. Staff worked with Plymouth Fire Department for 100th Anniversary Celebration 
11. Staff worked with EM for Fire Chief Meeting 

 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
Electronic recording is on the way. Contracts signed, vendors notified, wheels in motion.  Soon 
recorders who would rather not mail documents or drive to Plymouth from Charlotte, or where 
ever, can file electronically through our current provider, Simplifile.  There is no cost to the 
county, the filer pays the extra filing fee to the Vendor, which sends the documents to 
Washington County over a secured line. This will save fuel, and time. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Lee Sasser 
 
No report submitted. 
 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
No reports submitted. 

 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
No report submitted. 



 
 

 

Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 

 
Overall:  July was a good month we had plenty of activities and the participation was good. Due 
to the shortage of drivers for Riverllight Transit, the staff form the senior Center has to transport 
the seniors to the senior center.  We don’t know how long this will be.  The seniors are happy to 
be able to continue to come to the center. 
Walking Trail:  July 1, 2022 – The Seniors walk around the trail outside (weather permits).  If 
bad weather occurs, we walk around the senior center.  This gets the seniors up and moving. 
Independence Day Celebration – July 5, 2022 – We prepared a power point presentation about 
the history of celebrating Independence Day.  It was informative and the seniors enjoyed it.  We 
served ice cream and cake.    
Chair Volleyball: – July 6, 2022 – The seniors love playing chair volleyball.  They sit in chairs 
and play volleyball.   
Sewing with Geraldine – July 6, 2022 – Ms. Geraldine Davenport volunteers weekly to teach 
the seniors how to sew.  They are making quilts.  The seniors are learning to cut out the squares 
and sewing them together to make a quilt 
Crafts with Sandra – July 6, 2022- Sandra Lee comes weekly with a variety of crafts for the 
seniors to make.  She has made some amazing things for only $5.00 per class and she provides 
the supplies.   
Woo Ball – July 7, 2022 – The seniors are seated in a circle and bounce the ball to each other. It 
doesn’t sound like much but the seniors love playing it.  
Bean Bag Toss – July 11, 2022 – This game is unpredictable because the cups in the net are 
bouncy.  They can throw the bag in the cup but the bag can bounce out.  It can be interesting and 
funny to play.   
Tai Chi – July 11, 2022 – Vanessa Joyner is teaching the seniors Tai Chi.  It is a very slow and 
deliberate moves that helps with balance and arthritis.  The seniors are very good with the 
moves.   
Movie Day – July 12, 2022 – We pick a movie for the seniors to watch and serve popcorn.  They 
like the movies and enjoy the popcorn.   
Hurricane Preparedness – July 13, 2022- Lance Swindell, Emergency Manager can and talked 
to the seniors about being prepared for the upcoming hurricane season.  He gave them tips on 
being ready for the storms. We got the seniors signed up for the Hyper reach calls.  
Bowling in Williamston – July 14, 2022 – We carried a vanload to the bowling alley in 
Williamston.  They had a good time.   It was to first time bowling for some.      
Cooking with Staff – July 18, 2022 – Vanessa prepared a dish for the seniors to try.  We hadn’t 
cooked in a while but it was fun.  They like to eat and try new things.  
Coffee Break – July 19, 2022 – This is a time the Director sit down and talk to the seniors about 
future plans for the center and get their input on what they want to do.  They can come up with 
great ideas.   
Tender Touch Home Care Agency – July 20, 2022 – A Rep from the services cane to share 
with the seniors the services they provide.   They are new to the area and the seniors learned 
what they offer to them.     
Jewelry Making Class – July 21, 2022 – Ms. Bonnie Howard wanted to demonstrated and show 
the seniors how to make a simple necklace.  She is great at making jewelry.     
Nutrition Presentation – July 26, 2022 – Martha Carter, Nutrition Site Manager prepared 
information on how to eat heathier to the seniors. She always gives great information to help the 
seniors stay healthy 



 
 

 

Matching – July 28, 2022 – We have a computer game on Linked Senior that has matching.   
The seniors are good with matching.  This helps to stimulate their brain. We try to promote 
activities that keep them mentally alert.   
  
Exercise Classes offered at the Center:   
Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Beginner’s Line Dancing – Tuesday 5:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
Fitness Workout – Wednesday & Friday – 5:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
Advanced Line Dancing – Thursday 5:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
Yoga – Monday 7:00 cost $5.00 monthly  
 
The Line Dancing and Fitness Workout classes are opened to all citizens regardless of age. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 2 runway lights. 
 

2. Installed new PTO shaft for woods 3240 mower. Mower works better, has  
2 seals that will have to replace when possible. 

 
3. Had to install new blades on Kubota mower, blades worn until it left two  

streaks when mowing. 
 

4. Traffic is still very slow. Sales down from slow economy.  
 

5. Attended the ITRE (Division of Aviation) class on Airport Safety and  
Security held in New London, NC. Very informative for General Aviation 
Airports.  
 

6. Future Projects:  
 

a) Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.      
b) Find someone to contract installing sump pumps on Av/gas tank and sump pump 

on Jet/A fuel tank.  
c) Have sump pumps for the Av/gas and jet fuel tanks. Will have to get piping for 

each tank to be able to install sump pumps.  
d) Av/gas reel motor not working. Have to find problem so it can get fixed. 
e) Jet reel motor stopped working also. Have to find problem and fix it.       
f) Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway lights, and fixtures that has sunken in 

or washed away to meet FAA safety standards. 
 

7. Runway:  
a) Need to put weed killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.     
b) Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport. 
c) Need to cut around runway and taxiway lights. Will have to remove trees north 

end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA safety standards.  



 
 

 

d) Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear 
on airport equipment.                                                             

e) Repair Beacon  
f) Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator) 
g) Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                            
h) Have to replace u-joints on wood’s 3240 mower.                         
i) Replace underground phone line to FMU at refueling station.    

     
8. And other items that are not on this list.                                

 
 
Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Pressure wash Roper Annex building, re-line parking lot, take equipment down from loft, 
move furniture to the airport, put up ceiling tiles, change light bulbs, patch wall holes, 
and put up fire escape signs at Roper Annex. 

2. Installed ceiling tiles, exit light bulbs and replace light bulbs in Detention.  
3. Installed new light fixture on the second-floor stairwell. 
4. Unclog first floor bathroom drain. 
5. Unclog drain for A/C in planning and safety 
6. Cut down trees at Roper Annex. 
7. Clean both A/C units out and installed balances at the Roper Annex. 
8. Weed eating and spray grass at the airport. 
9. Dump the waste out the Hand Cleaning Dispenser for Water and Tax Departments. 
10. Take mattress to landfill for EMS. 
11. Striped the floor at the Roper Annex. 
12. Installed light bulbs, ceiling tiles, balances, flush handles, flush valves, receptacles, light 

switches. 
 

Housekeeping: 
a) Disinfect / Windows / Vacuum/ Trash/ Dust/ etc. 
b) Library 
c) Planning 
d) Cooperative Extension 
e) Probation 
f) CMO 
g) Courthouse Offices & Restrooms 

 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 

Surplus Update for Septebmer 2022 BOC 
   

Currently At Auction 
Asset List Price End Date 
2008 Dodge Charger 1000 16-Sep 
2008 Dodge Charger 500 16-Sep 
2004 Ford Crown Vic 400 16-Sep 
2006 Dodge Dakota 800 16-Sep 
2006 Ford 500 800 16-Sep 
2008 Dodge Durango 500 16-Sep 

   
   

Sold ( or pending sale) 
Asset Price Status 
Weston Rd  Pending 

   
   
   

Preparing to be Listed 
Asset Status   
6 SO Vehicles Holding on SO 
IT Surplus Round 2 Currently Advertising 
Audio Equip. from WCC Holding on BCCC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

56 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 56 56
Male 40 40
Female 3 3
Male 0 0
Female 0 0
Male 0 0
Female 0 0
Male 0 0
Female 0 0
Male 0 0
Female 1 1
Male 0 0
Female 0 0
Male 0 0
Female 12 12
Male 0 0
Female 0 0

0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

MARTIN

DETENTION 
FY22-23

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

0

12

0

0

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY
SMCP

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

0

0

43

0

1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 0
WC Transported 0
WC Refusals 0

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 0
SNF to Doctors 0
Hospital Discharges 0
EMS Back Up 0

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 0
TC Transported 0
TC Refusals 0

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0
HC Transported 0
HC Refusals 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY22-23

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Pickups FY23

0

0

0



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals
Building $1,355.00 2,150.00$          $3,505.00
Zoning 75.00$      25.00$         $100.00

Reinspect 225.00$    -$             $225.00
SWUF $150.00 125.00$      $275.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 $0.00

Total $1,805.00 $2,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,105.00

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY22-23

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY22-23) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

85%

2%
6%

7% 0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building

Zoning

Reinspect

SWUF

HO Recovery
Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 0
Unduplicated Attendees 0
New Particpants 0
Center-Sponsored Events 0
Special Events 0
Caregiver's Support Group 0
Exercise Room 0
Dance Fitness 0
Yoga 0
Chair Exercise 0
Beginner's Line Dance 0
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 0
Craft Room 0
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA -$        -$        -$          -$        -$        -$      -$        -$        -$  -$  -$  -$  -$            
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees -$            
Donations -$            

SENIOR CENTER
FY22-23

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

Meals Served (FY22-23)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

0%0%0% 0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY22-23) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 898,210.32$      898,210.32$                        
Current Yr Discount (16,983.97)$       (16,983.97)$                         
Current Year Penalty 107.78$              107.78$                                
Current Year Interest -$                    -$                                      
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 10,162.47$        10,162.47$                          
Watershed Discount (203.16)$             (203.16)$                               
Watershed Penalty 1.24$                  1.24$                                    
Watershed Interest -$                    -$                                      
Prior Year Tax 44,247.58$        44,247.58$                          
Prior Year Penalty 154.44$              154.44$                                
Prior Year Interest 4,028.32$           4,028.32$                             
Prior Year Watershed 378.70$              378.70$                                
Prior Year WS Penalty 1.69$                  1.69$                                    
Prior Year WS Interest 333.37$              333.37$                                
Bad Checks -$                    -$                                      
Prepayments 520.18$              520.18$                                

TOTAL 940,958.96$      -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  940,958.96$                        

Initiated 0 0
Amount -$                    -$                                      
Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0
Amount -$                    -$                                      

*
-$                                      

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,173,600.00$   1,173,600.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 171,230.20$      171,230.20$                        
Bad Checks -$                    -$                                      

TOTAL 171,230.20$      -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  171,230.20$                        

Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 8,733.79$           8,733.79$                             

Creswell Levy 3,564.64$           3,564.64$                             
1,124,487.59$   -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  1,124,487.59$                     

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

TAX
FY22-23

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Law Enforcement 0

Animal Control 0
EMS 0

Reported Incidents 62 62
Total Arrests 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14

Misdemeanor Arrests 5 5
Felony Arrests 9 9

Total Papers Served 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
Criminal Papers Served 10 10

Civil Papers Served 54 54
Total Papers Outstanding 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 7

Civil Papers Outstanding 8 8
Gun Permits Issued 23 23
Conceals Pending 0 0

Concealed Permits Issued 21 21

SHERRIFF
FY22-23

0%0%0%

Dispatched Calls (FY22-23)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY22-23)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

62

5

9 10

54

7 8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

YTD TOTALS

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY22-23)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons) 7656 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956

88,905

Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in 
million gallons) 7707

7,707

Base Charges 65,364$      65,364$          
Consumption Charges 48,516$      48,516$          
Reconnecton Charges 1,785$        1,785$            

 Number of Abatements 
13

13                   

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 1,547.00$  

1,547.00$      

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons) 13.9 13.900

Number of Customers 2657 2,657
New taps 0 0
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$              

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY22-23

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 58.36 58.36
Inert Debris 10.77 10.77
Scrap Metal 5.27 5.27
C&D 155.3 155.30
Tires 2.9 2.90

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 22-23

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires





















DRAFT 
 

                
August 1, 2022 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
August 1. 2022 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps, Bill Sexton and Julius Walker, 
Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  Commissioner Chair Tracey A. 
Johnson was unable to attend the meeting. 
 

Vice-Chair Walker welcomed everyone to our meeting tonight. Vice-Chair Walker said 
“your presence means you are interested in what happens in Washington County” and the 
Commissioners appreciate it. 

 
 Vice-Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the 
invocation; Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None.  
 
Commissioner Phelps made the motion to accept the agenda for tonight’s meeting. 

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  Mr. Lloyd Jones, 842 Gourd Neck Road, Roper stated that he lives 

on a rural road and the mowing on rural roads is not good.  When ditch banks are mowed, the 
clippings are thrown on the road.  They should have a sweeper behind the mower to get it off the 
road. When DOT waits until the grass is 2 ft. high then that’s a lot of grass clippings that get 
thrown in the road.  This continues to be an issue.  Mr. Jones said something needs to be done if 
they are going to continue to throw clippings in the road. Mr. Jones went on to say there are 
mowers that can lay the grass down. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda: 
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may 
take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld 
from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the 
Board. 
a) Approval of Minutes for July 5, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Sessions of 

April 4, May 2, May 16 and June 6, 2022 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-025 Support of Display of US Motto 
d) Resolution 2022-026 MOA w/Pettigrew Regional Library 
e) Motorsports Grant Agreement 
f)    Resolution 2022-028 Scrap Tires  

 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



DRAFT 
 

RECOGNITION OF LEADERSHIP ACADEMY PARTICIPANTS:  Mr. Potter said that 
before COVID, the Managers for Martin, Bertie and Washington County put together a three (3) 
county program for leadership training with help from Chatham County.  Had 8 participants. It 
was difficult to keep them interested in the program.  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA presented 
certificates to Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer; Mr. Doremus Luton, Public Utilities Director 
(was not present); Ms. Jennifer O’Neal, EMS Director and Ms. Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy 
Director.  
 
 Vice-Chair Walker congratulated them on taking time out of their busy schedules to do 
this. 
 
 GEENEX SOLAR, LLC UPDATE ON HWY 99 PROJECT:  Ms. Kara Price of Geenex 
Solar, LLC gave the following presentation on the Macadamia Solar Project. 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said she was the Emergency Manager when this project came 
before the Board for approval.  Even in the beginning, GEENEX always provided whatever they 
were asked to provide in a timely manner. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  Mr. Wes Gray, Martin-Tyrrell-
Washington Health Department Director gave an update to the Commissioners.  
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 Mr. Gray said there were some peaks in May and June for COVID.  
He also said that the MTW website lists the COVID-19 testing sites with dates and times.  
Currently the statewide focus is on vaccinations for children 6 months and older.   
 



DRAFT 
 

 Mr. Gray also said that monkeypox cases are rapidly something we will be seeing.  There 
is one (1) case in Pitt County.  There are also cases in Mecklenburg, Buncombe and Wake 
counties. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps asked Mr. Gray if MTW does primary care.  Mr. Gray said yes 
they do--4 days a week. 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked Mr. Gray if MTW can prescribe medications for COVID.  
Mr. Gray said yes they could.  The counties pharmacies have it.  Commissioner Keyes asked 
about MTW having dental services.  Mr. Gray said yes they do—Monday, Tuesday & Thursday 
in Plymouth and Wednesday & Friday in Columbia.  They are trying to find a second dentist.  
Most days they are scheduling 40 patients a day. 
 
 LATE BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY LISTING AND APPLICATION FOR 
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OR EXCLUSION FROM SUNENERGY:   Ms. Sherri 
Wilkins, Tax Administrator spoke to the Board about the abovementioned request from 
SunEnergy. Ms. Wilkins said she received this paperwork on July 25.  It was not received during 
the listing period deadline so she doesn’t have the authority to approve it and it had to come 
before the Board. Commissioner Sexton said he feels that the county is getting taken advantage 
of. He has always been told that folks need to meet the deadline. Commissioner Sexton said he is 
not in favor of approving the request. He said he feels that if the Board sets a precedent for 
approving them all, then the Board we is going to constantly have people coming asking for an 
exemption. 
  
 Mr. Potter said statute says for “good cause shown” (see below). 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 Ms. Wilkins stated that she emailed SunEnergy that they were late and she had to take it 
before the Board.  SunEnergy said they missed sending in the application because they were 
changing office. Commissioner Sexton stated he understands that; however, they were aware of 
the process.  Commissioner Phelps agreed with Commissioner Sexton.  Commissioner Keyes 
said she understands that paperwork can be overlooked, but the Board needs to be careful with 
this.  Commissioner Walker reminded the Board that a couple of months ago this Board denied a 
similar request and the Board needs to be consistent. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made the motion to deny SunEnergy’s Late Business Personal 
Property Listing and Application for Property Tax Exemption or Exclusion based on the 
fact that they missed the deadline.  Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
  
BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
Coastal Resources Advisory County (CRAC) 
 
Ms. Bennett stated that the County Manager’s Office received an email (see below) from the 
Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) seeking nominees to the Coastal Resources Advisory 
Council. (CRAC). The Board is being ask to bring possible names of nominees to the Board 
meeting for discussion.  
 
“From: Owens, Charlan <charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, July 7, 2022 7:42 AM 
 
Subject: Coastal Resources Advisory Council Appointments - 2nd Solicitation 

mailto:charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov


DRAFT 
 

 
Hello everyone, 
 
This email is being sent to local government managers in the Division of Coastal Management’s 
northern area. 
 
The Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) is seeking nominees to the Coastal Resources 
Advisory Council (CRAC).  See ATTACHMENTS and email below for details. 
 
Nominations are due by August 5, 2022.   
 
******************************* 
The N.C. Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) has been seeking nominations for the Coastal 
Resources Advisory Council (CRAC), which works with the CRC to balance and foster the 
protection and wise development of the State’s coastal resources through both planning and 
regulation under the NC Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA).  There are six open seats on 
the CRAC, which the Commission would like to fill.  The Commission is therefore welcoming 
additional nominations from local governments to fill these remaining seats. 
 
Discussion ensued; however, the consensus was to table this for the present time and bring back 
next year. 
 
ABC Board 
 
The ABC Board has requested that the Board re-appoint Mr. Tim Spear for a 3-year term. The 
ABC Board is very pleased with his leadership, knowledge and overall performance.   
 
Mr. Spear has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made the motion to approve the re-appointment of Mr. Tim 
Spear to Washington County’s ABC Board._Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
 FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon said the budget transfers, budget 
amendments and the financial report were in the Commissioners’ package and asked if they had 
any questions.  
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 
 

 
 Commissioner Sexton asked was there a lot of Budget Transfers and Budget 
Amendments because she was trying to finish out the year?  Ms. Dixon replied yes. 
Commissioner Keyes said Ms. Dixon did such a thorough job that she had no questions. 
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget amendments/ transfers 
as presented above.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
Commissioner Sexton asked what was the status of adding the US Motto to the 

Commissioners’ Room wall.  Mr. Potter stated that the Board approved it in tonight’s Consent 
Agenda. 

 
Commissioner Keyes spoke about a couple of food drops taking place in the coming days 

in Roper. 
 

Commissioner Walker asked if the County has heard anything from the hospital.  Did 
they say why they didn’t show up at the last meeting? Mr. Potter replied no. 

 
Commissioner Keyes and Phelps attended WCS’s Science Fair. Commissioner Phelps 

stated that about a mile past Conman’s, the trash truck turns around there and sometimes doesn’t 



DRAFT 
 

pickup the trash. When trash is left out, the bears in that area get in the trash.   Commissioner 
Phelps asked if the tax cutoffs for the tax discounts be moved from July 31 to August 31 and 
from August 31 to September 30 and September 30 to October 31 because when the tax bills 
arrive late, citizens don’t get a chance to take advantage of the tax discount for July.  Mr. Potter 
said staff can look into it.  The decision has to be made 4 months in advance.  Mr. Potter said the 
Board can revisit this during our January budget workshop. 

 
Mr. Potter said he has been receiving complaints trash and/or recycling not being picked 

up.  Republic has a serious shortage of drivers. They will be on the agenda in October. 
 
Mr. Potter said he would like to commend Dr. Carr, WCS Superintendent for keeping the 

progress moving regarding the new Pre-K - 12 school.  Mr. Potter also said that a meeting will be 
held on Wednesdays @ 1:30 PM (the Building Committee) and they would like 2 Board 
members to attend @ the WCS Central Office.  Commissioners Keyes and Walker said they will 
attend. 

 
Mr. Potter reported that a small plane landed on Hwy 64 this morning and it was drug off 

to side of the road so as not to impede traffic.  The wings will be removed and it will be put on a 
low-boy truck and taken back to Manteo. 

 
Ms. Dixon mentioned there was an accident with one of our new Sheriff’s cars—and it 

was unavoidable. 
 
Mr. Potter said that Agape will have a Grand Opening on August 11 (across the street).  It 

was noted that four (4) of the Commissioners and the County Manager will all be at the NCACC 
Annual Conference that week and will be unable to attend. 

 
Mr. Potter stated that the Clerk of Court has requested that when 911 is moved to a new 

location (multi-purpose bldg. at airport) he would like to go on record to say he would like to 
have that area for it to be a grand jury room.  

 
Mr. Potter said he will be trying to hammer out the WCS funding agreement in order for 

the two (2) Boards (WCS BOE & BOCC) to meet.  
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss 
personnel.  Commissioner Keyes seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Back in Open Session, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to submit Mr. John Spruill’s 

name to represent Washington County on the CRAC. Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Sexton 

seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
  
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
           Julius Walker, Jr.         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

    Vice-Chair         Clerk to the Board 



DRAFT 

 
 

August 15, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) met in a Special 
Called Joint Meeting on Monday, August 15, 2022 at 6:00 PM with the Washington County 
School Board of Education (BOE) at the Washington County Early College School in Creswell, 
NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps and Julius Walker, Jr. were present in the 
room.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter and Clerk to the Board 
Julie J. Bennett.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, William R. “Bill” Sexton, Jr. and County 
Finance Officer Missy Dixon were unable to attend. 
 

Washington County Board of Education Members C. Riddick, L. Clark, J. Phelps and F. 
Norman were present. Also present were Dr. L. Carr, Superintendent and Ms. C. Pettiford, Clerk 
to the Board. BoE Member V. Cherry was unable to attend. 
 

BOE Chair Riddick called the BOE meeting to order.  BOCC Vice-Chair Walker 
welcomed everyone and called the BOCC meeting to order. 
 

It was determined that four (4) members of the BOE were present and three (3) members 
of the BOCC therefore, both Boards have a quorum. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   Mr. Doug Maxwell said he doesn’t know what the BOE is after.  
They should fix what they already have.  How much is insurance going to be on a glass school?  
How is a new school going to improve the education of the County’s students? Mr. Maxwell 
stated he has hired students from the County’s high schools and they can’t read a tape measure or 
do simple math.  
 

Ms. Charlotte Maxwell stated that she taught at PHS and CHS.  Kids from this County 
have had the chance to go far and didn’t.  Why is a new school going to make kids better?  Kids 
need to be built up. Ms. Maxwell said she taught in a trailer with holes in it.  Basic education is 
not being taught in our schools. Basic math, science and English need to be taught. 
 

ESSR BUDGET:  Dr. Carr stated that she wanted to bring both boards back together 
since the Building Committee has been meeting. Dr. Carr also said that Ms. Julie Simpson is 
going to present the ESSER Budgets (PRC 171 and PRC 181) tonight since it is due to DPI soon.  

 
Ms. Simpson gave her presentation on the ESSR Budgets. 
 
BOE Member Clark made a motion to approve the ESSR Budget.  BOE Member 

Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

SCHOOL FUNDING AGREEMENT:  Mr. Potter said the Building Committee met a 
couple of weeks ago and looked at a rough draft of the funding agreement between the WCS and 
the County. The funding for relocating the Early College was also discussed. The building in 
Roper (Fall of 2024) would not be ready till Fall of 2024 since students are still in that building. 
Another thing noted is that WCS would have to bus students to outdoor athletic activities to 
Washington County High School fields. A bigger kitchen was going to have to be put in the 
budget. Mr. Bob Jessup, the County’s Financial Attorney, completed the form exhibits on the 



DRAFT 

back of the funding agreement, the project agreement and a proposed form lease. The County 
will own property and building while under construction.  The $12M borrowed by the County is 
to be paid back to the County from WCS.  Some typographical mistakes were fixed in the 
documents. Mr. Potter said there are lots of moving parts stacked on top of each other and also 
commended participants of WCS and the County for continuing to move forward on this project.  
Dr. Carr said WCS received an updated timeline, but still has the completion date of the new 
building of July 2024. Mr. Potter said certain bids have to be in hand before going to the LGC’s 
Dec 7 mtg.  He also said that overall, things are on track. Mr. Potter feels both WCS and the 
County can all stick to the timeline.  
 

Dr. Carr said it was mentioned to have some marketing materials prepared to show the 
community what the new school is going to look like.  

 
BOE Chair Riddick noted that WCS will need a JRROTC room. 
 
Mr. Potter said what he has heard from the community is concern over the the amount of 

funds needed to go forward with such a project.  Mr. Potter reiterated that this project is being 
put forth without raising taxes or going into either Boards’ general fund.  

 
BOCC Vice-Chair Walker thanked Dr. Carr and Mr. Potter for getting the two Boards 

together to make some tough decisions and they have kept this project moving together to do 
what’s best for the children in Washington County. 

 
Commissioner Keyes thanked both Boards on the tremendous work that has been put into 

this project.  She also stated that she is a product of Washington County’s school system.  The 
BOCC’s intent is to not have a tax increase but to do the best for students and citizens in 
Washington County. 

  
Dr. Carr said WCS currently is submitting an application for Phase II additional funding.  

She asked that everyone please reach out to their legislatures for more funds for technology and 
furniture and outdoor athletic facilities.  Dr. Carr also said she is grateful to folks purchasing 
lottery tickets!  Dr. Carr said WCS will continue to ask for funding. 
 

BOE Member Clark said this new school being built is what is needed for the County’s 
kids. They have sat in schools with mold and our kids have suffered. 

 
At 6:35 PM, with no further business to be discussed, BOE Member Phelps made a 

motion to adjourn the BOE meeting.  BOE Member Clark seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to adjourn the BOCC meeting.  Commissioner 

Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Julius Walker, Jr.                 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

       Vice-Chair                        Clerk to the Board 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

August 24, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called Meeting on 
Wednesday, August 24, 2022 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, William R. “Bill” Sexton, Jr.  
and Julius Walker, Jr. were present in the room.  Also present were County Manager/County 
Attorney Curtis Potter and Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett.  Commissioner Carol Phelps and 
County Finance Officer Missy Dixon were unable to attend. 
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order.   
 

 Mr. Potter said he would like to add to the agenda RESO 2022-032 Authorizing a Joint 
Application for the Needs Based Public Schools Capital Grant for Pre-K – 12 Schools. 
 

FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR NEW PRE-K - 12 SCHOOL:  Mr. Potter went over Mr. 
Bob Jessup’s email and funding agreement documents. (The documents are incorporated by 
reference and hereby made part of these minutes.) Mr. Potter went over the SFLA project costs 
also (last page of document). The changes are in red in the document. Note the  
lower soft cost in the project costs.  
 

Commissioner Keyes asked if the higher payment was already anticipated. Mr. Potter 
said the higher payment will be because Washington County Schools (WCS) can’t pay over 
$400,000 a year. The County will need to float the amount in the early payments.  Commissioner 
Sexton asked how much the debt service is. Mr. Potter said debt service is set up for 20 years. 
The extra $10M has been incorporated into the project funds--now $50M instead of $40M and 
gyms are included in the design. Last week, the School Board approved using their ESSR funds 
to pay the architect’s fees which are currently at $3.5M. 
 

Chair Johnson asked if anyone in the audience would like to ask a question.  Mr. Lloyd 
Jones, citizen of Roper, asked about WCS paying rent.  Mr. Potter said that will happen when 
they move into the new school.  The County will own the building and WCS will be paying 
$400,000 as a “lease”.   Mr. Jones said he is still disturbed over Pines Elementary.  He feels that 
some teeth need to be put into the new school to keep it better maintained. Mr. Potter said there 
will be terms in the lease for maintaining the school. At some point in time, the property will be 
conveyed to the school and then they become responsible for maintenance.  Mr. Jones said if the 
new school isn’t properly maintained it’s going to end up like Pines Elementary. 

  
Chair Johnson said these are unprecedented times where the County is basically being 

given a new school.  The money can only be spent on a new school--nothing else.  Chair Johnson 
went on to say that County staff is finally comfortable that the County can do this without raising 
taxes. All of the Commissioners agreed they are pleased at how things are going.  

 
Mr. George Swain, citizen of Plymouth, asked where could someone go to see a similar 

school like the one to be built in Washington County.  Chair Johnson said that Hoke and Jones 
County schools are similar. 
 



DRAFT 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to approve RESO 2022-030 Authorizing 
Interlocal Funding Agreement for Pre-K – 12 School.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  
Motion carried with a roll call vote of 4-0. 
 
 RESO 2022-032 AUTHORIZING A JOINT APPLICATION FOR THE NEEDS BASED 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS CAPITAL GRANT FOR PRE-K – 12 SCHOOLS:  Mr. Potter spoke to the 
Board to say that Dr. Carr has provided the abovementioned application and needs the Board of 
Commissioners signature. (The application and resolution which is incorporated by reference is 
hereby made part of these minutes.) 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve RESO 2022-032 Authorizing a 
Joint Application for the Needs Based Public Schools Capital Grant for Pre-K – 12 Schools.  
Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Motion carried with a roll call vote of 4-0. 
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner 
Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

        Chair                         Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 

 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
   
       DATE:     September 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda September 6, 2022
	9-6-2022 Item 1 (public forum)
	9-6-2022 Item 2 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents
	FY23 Pay Tables Schedule eff 8.16.22
	Washington County SAA Delegate List 2022
	RESO2022-031 Authorized sale of real prpoerty 272 N Street, Plymouth
	RESO 2022-034 Remembering 911 Sept 2022
	Tracey A. Johnson, Chair

	BOCC Resolution 22-035 Authorizing Commerce Center Deed Execution 20220901
	RESO 2022-036 Sept is Emergency Preparedness Month
	RESO 2022-037 Proclamation Constitution Week Sept 2022
	Tracey A. Johnson, Chair

	9-6-2022 Item 3 Dept Info Update--Sheriff's Ofc
	9-6-2022 Item 4 Late App for Elderly Tax Exempt Exclusion--A. Knox
	Knox_ Annie Exemption Application
	Knox Annie 2022 Late Application Approval
	Knox Annie 2022 Late Application Denial
	9-6-2022 Item 5 RESO2022-033 Pea Ridge Transmission Expansion & Presentation
	RESO 2022-033 DEQ DWI Sept 6 2022 BoCC
	CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

	PeaRidge_funding
	Pea Ridge Main Expansion	
	Project Background
	Slide Number 3
	Additional Financing Strategies
	Staff Recommendation
	Questions? 

	9-6-2022 Item 6 State of Emergency Discussion
	BOCC MEMO re COVID19 Declaration of State of Emergency for 20220906 mtg
	SOE Declaration for Washco Covid-19 Amendement 1 20200724 signed.pdf
	WHEREAS, on July 16, 2020, Chief Justice Beasley of the Supreme Court of North Carolina issued Emergency Directive 21 which requires the use of face coverings while in the common areas of, or interacting with other persons, within any court facilities...
	WHEREAS, there is some ambiguity as to the applicability of such orders in certain county owned or controlled facilities; and
	WHEREAS, as Chairman of the Washington County Board of Commissioners, after consulting with local healthcare officials, I desire to extend the certain face covering requirements of Executive Order No. 147 to all Washington County buildings and facilit...
	NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority vested in me as the Chairman of the Washington County Board of Commissioners under Article 1A of Chapter 166A of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Washington County State of Emergency Ordinance I here...
	1. A new Subsection (A) (Wearing of Face Coverings) is hereby added to Section 3 of the Original Declaration of a State of Emergency to read as follows:
	A. WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS:
	i. Except as specifically stated herein, all members of the public who are present in any Washington County owned or controlled building or facility are required to wear a clean face covering. A face covering is a material that covers the nose and mou...
	ii. Social Distance shall be construed as the amount of distance between persons (or any other specific guidance or parameters established for measuring or maintaining social distance) as defined or established by the current parameters of any of the ...
	1. Social Distancing Parameters established by any Executive Order issued by the Governor of the State of North Carolina, and
	2. Social Distancing Parameters established within any guidance provided by the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services (NCDHHS), and
	3. Social Distancing Parameters established within any guidance provided by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC),
	iii. Exceptions: Face coverings shall not be required for the reasons listed below, nor for any other reasons established as exceptions to the requirements that face coverings be generally worn in public settings by any applicable Executive Orders iss...
	1. Persons whose religious beliefs prevent them from wearing a face covering.
	2. Persons who cannot wear a face covering due to a medical or behavioral condition.
	3. Children under 12 years of age.
	4. While temporarily removed to consume food or beverage provided social distancing can be maintained during such consumption.
	5. In private, individual offices where there is not regular interaction with the general public, and where social distancing can be maintained.
	6. When complying with directions of law enforcement officers.
	7. In settings where it is not practical or feasible to wear a face covering, subject to review and approval by the Public Health Director or County Manager.
	Anyone who declines to wear a face covering for these reasons shall not be required to produce documentation or any other proof of any exempt condition.
	If an individual states that an exemption applies, County staff may choose to offer a reasonable measure approved by the County Manager to deliver any County services via alternative means to avoid unnecessary exposure.
	iv. Applicability: The requirements established in this amended order shall supplement and be in addition to the other requirements associated with the COVID-19 State of Emergency within the County, including, but not limited to, any requirements esta...
	v. Enforcement: Any individual who willfully disregards or fails to comply with these provisions shall be asked to exit the county building or facility. Refusal to exit said building or facility may result in the treatment of such individuals presence...
	vi. Effective Date and Time:  This Amendment shall take effect as of the date and time first stated above, and shall remain in effect until modified or rescinded.


	9-6-2022 Item 7 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments and Transfers (2)
	8-30-22 Finance Report
	9-6-2022 Item 8 Other Items
	DH Reports for 9-6-22 BoC Meeting
	FY22-23 Statisitc Report (September FY22 BOCC)
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	 Tax
	Sheriffs Office
	Utilities
	Landfill

	ABC Budget Amendment for Sept BoCC mtg
	EIC Resource Fair
	Register of Deeds Rollup Summary
	8-1-2022 minutes
	“From: Owens, Charlan <charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov>  Sent: Thursday, July 7, 2022 7:42 AM  Subject: Coastal Resources Advisory Council Appointments - 2nd Solicitation

	8-15-2022 minutes--Special Called joint meeting with WCS Board of Ed
	8-24-2022 minutes--Special Called Meeting



